%

oy
PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

Oversight and Governance
Chief Executive’s Department
Plymouth City Council

Ballard House

Plymouth PLI 3BJ

Please ask for Elliot Wearne-Gould

T 01752 305155

E democraticservices@plymouth.gov.uk
www.plymouth.gov.uk

Published 13 November 2025

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY PANEL

Friday 21 November 2025
2.00 pm
Warspite Room, Council House

Members:
Councillor Murphy, Chair

Councillor Ney, Vice Chair
Councillors Lawson, Lugger, McLay, Moore, Morton, Noble, Penrose, Simpson and Tuohy.

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf.
For further information on attending Council meetings and how to engage in the democratic
process please follow this link - Get Involved

Tracey Lee
Chief Executive


https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/councillorscommitteesandmeetings/getinvolved
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/councillorscommitteesandmeetings

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel

l. Apologies
To receive any apologies for non-attendance from Committee members.
2, Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of interest from Committee members in relation to items on
this agenda.

3. Minutes (Pages | - 10)
To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting held on |5 July 2025 as a correct record.
4. Chair's Urgent Business

To receive any reports on business which, in the opinion of the chair, should be brought
forward for urgent consideration.

5. Adult Social Care Finance Report - Month 6, 25/26: (Pages |1 - 14)
6. Adult Social Care Activity and Performance Report: (Pages 15 - 28)
7. Winter Planning: (Pages 29 - 56)
8. Readmissions at UHP: (Pages 57 - 66)
9. Action Log (Pages 67 - 68)

For the Committee to review the progress of actions.

10. Work Programme (Pages 69 - 72)
For the Committee to discuss item on the work programme.

Il. Exempt Business
To Consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(2)of the Local Government Act
1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following items of
business, on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as

defined in paragraphs (1/2/3/4/5/6/7) of Part | of Schedule |12A of the Act, as amended by
the Freedom of Information Act 2000.



89.

90.

91.

Page 1 Agenda Item 3

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel

Tuesday 15 July 2025
PRESENT:

Councillor Murphy, in the Chair.

Councillor Ney, Vice Chair.

Councillors Lawson, Lugger, MclLay, Moore, Morton, Noble, Penrose, Simpson and
Tuohy.

Also in attendance: Councillor Aspinall (Cabinet Member for Health and adult
social care), Chris Morley (Locality Director for Plymouth, NHS Devon ICB),
Emma Crowther (Service Director for Integrated Commissioning), Gary Walbridge
(Strategic Director for Adults, Health and Communities), Helen Slater (Lead
Accountancy Manager), lan Lightley (Chief Operating Officer, Livewell Southwest),
Jake Metcalfe (Democratic Advisor), Laura Daniel (Interim Cluster Manager,
University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust), Peter Collins (Chief Medical Officer,
NHS Devon Integrated Care Board), Stephen Beet (Head of ASC Retained
Functions), Tricia Davies (St Luke’s Hospice).

The meeting started at 2.00 pm and finished at 3.37 pm.
Note: At a future meeting, the Panel will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, so
they may be subject to change. Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm

whether these minutes have been amended.

Declarations of Interest

Minute Name Description Type
No.
93,94 &95 | Councillor Morton | Employee of University Personal

Hospitals Plymouth

93,94 &95 | Councillor Noble Employee of University Personal
Hospitals Plymouth

93,94 &95 | Councillor Lawson | Employee of University Personal
Hospitals Plymouth

Appointment of a Chair and Vice-Chair for 2025/26

The Panel noted the appointment of Councillor Pauline Murphy as Chair, and
Councillor Carol Ney as Vice-Chair for the 2025-26 Municipal Year.

Minutes

The Panel agreed the minutes of the meeting held on || February 2025 as a correct
record.

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel Tuesday 15 July 2025




92.

93.

Page 2

Chair's Urgent Business

There were no items of Chair’s urgent business.

Quarterly Performance, Finance and Risk Reports for H&ASC

The Chair noted that this would be Stephen Beet and Emma Crowther’s last scrutiny
meeting before they departed the authority next month. The Chair thanked both for
their contributions to the Panel’s work, and wished them well for the future.

Stephen Beet (Head of ASC Retained Functions) and lan Lightley (Livewell
Southwest) delivered the Quarterly Performance report for Adult Social Care and
discussed:

2)

b)

d)

Since the last update in February, the service had been working through the
Transformation Board on an improvement plan focused on:
i. Reducing waiting times for Care Act assessments and annual reviews;
ii. Practice development;
iii. Occupational therapy (OT) performance.

Improvements had been seen in waiting times for assessments and reviews,
and there had been an increase in the number of people receiving direct
payments;

The service had undergone a CQC inspection in June 2025, following an
information return submitted in January. The inspection had been a positive
experience, with the CQC engaging with a wide range of staff, providers,
partners and councillors. The final report was expected in one to two
months;

Performance data demonstrated that:

i. The number of people waiting over 500 days for assessments had
significantly reduced, with the longest waits now under 300 days;

ii. The overall number of people waiting for Care Act assessments had
dropped considerably;

iii. Improvements had been achieved through quality improvement work
rather than additional resources, with successful test-of-change pilots in
the South and East localities now rolled out city-wide;

The service had developed a trajectory model to forecast when waiting times
would reach acceptable levels, with October 2025 identified as the target.
Although recent data had shown a slight reversal, the service remained on
track;

Analysis of assessment outcomes had shown that a high proportion of
individuals did not require a funded care package, highlighting missed
opportunities for early intervention and signposting. Work was underway
with the Wellbeing Hub network to improve front-door triage and reduce
unnecessary assessments;

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel Tuesday 15 July 2025



g)

h)

Page 3

The “Waiting Well” policy had been implemented, including proactive
contact with individuals on waiting lists via text messages and follow-up
checks;

Review performance had improved, with 57.9% of people receiving a review
within 12 months of their care package, approaching the regional benchmark
of 60.7%. No individuals had waited more than two years for a review;

Occupational Therapy (OT) performance remained challenging, with a slight
improvement in the number of people waiting. Improvement work was
ongoing including:
i. Demand and capacity modelling had been completed using national
benchmarking tools;
ii. The service was exploring whether some assessments could be avoided
or replaced with quicker support offers;
iii. A trajectory model for OT improvement was in development.

A partnership with Plymouth Community Homes had enabled trusted
assessors to carry out simple adaptations and remove over 100 cases from
the waiting list.

In response to questions, the Panel discussed:

k)

Whether similar partnership arrangements existed with other housing
providers such as LiveWest, Sanctuary and Sovereign. It was confirmed that
broader partnership arrangements existed through the Plymouth Alliance;

Livewell Southwest was not holding any OT vacancies. To address demand
and capacity challenges, lower-risk cases were prioritised for alternative
support options;

m) While waiting list numbers had dropped, average wait times had increased.

This was due to the data being captured retrospectively, which skewed the
averages temporarily as long-wait cases were closed. It was anticipated that
future reports would show a reduction in average wait times;

The Committee discussed the impact of the national spending review and
whether funding would reach Plymouth. Officers confirmed that modelling
was underway with external advisors, and a consultation response was being
prepared ahead of the 15 August deadline;

The Committee queried the number of individuals receiving care outside the
Plymouth area. Officers explained that:
i.  Out-of-area placements were often due to individual choice or
specialist needs;
ii.  Plymouth remained the responsible authority for funding such
placements;
iii.  Data had been provided to the CQC and could be shared with the
Committee in future.

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel Tuesday 15 July 2025



P)

q)

Page 4

The Committee asked for data on the proportion of Care Act assessments
resulting in funded care packages. Officers reported that:
i.  Approximately 20% of assessments resulted in a care package, though
this figure included hospital discharges;
ii. A more accurate figure for community-based assessments was being
prepared;
iii.  For individuals with mental health as their primary support reason,
only 10% required a care package or direct payment.

A pilot was being introduced to support individuals with mental health needs
through talking therapies and emotional skills development, aiming to reduce
reliance on formal care packages;

The Committee discussed concerns regarding domiciliary care providers.
Emma Crowther (Service Director for Integrated Commissioning) explained
that:
i.  Concerns were typically related to leadership, workforce stability, or
specific incidents;
ii. A “Provider of Concern” process was in place, with fortnightly
meetings between commissioning and safeguarding teams;
iii.  Quarterly meetings were held with the CQC and Ofsted to
triangulate intelligence;
iv.  The Council aimed to support providers collaboratively but would use
contractual levers where necessary.

Helen Slater (Lead Accountancy Manager) delivered the quarterly finance report for
Adult Social Care at Month 2 of the 2025/26 financial year and discussed:

2)

b)

d)

While early in the financial year, a nil variance was currently being reported
on the Adult Social Care budget;

The Adult Social Care budget was the largest revenue budget in the Council,
totalling £1 13 million;

The service had been monitoring its highest-risk areas, particularly care
package expenditure. Risks had been identified in the domiciliary care budget,
driven by increased volumes and client numbers. Residential care budgets
were also under pressure, but this was attributed to the complexity of need
rather than client numbers;

Income budgets, which had been a source of pressure in the previous year,
had been rebased during budget preparation. It was anticipated that these
would not present significant issues in the current year and might help offset
expenditure pressures;

The Adult Social Care savings target for 2025/26 was £2.7 million. Of this,

£1.175 million had already been achieved, with plans in place to deliver the
remainder during the year;

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel Tuesday 15 July 2025



94,

g)

Page 5

The Committee was informed that the Budget Containment Group had been
established, as in previous years, to monitor and manage financial risks. The
group was working with colleagues in Livewell to identify priority areas for
detailed review, including:

i Domiciliary care;

ii. Residential care;

iii.  Health funding for client packages;

iv.  Budget impacts of working-age adults versus older adults.

A more detailed financial report would be presented at Month 3, in line with
quarterly budget monitoring.

In response to questions, the Panel discussed:

h) The Chair welcomed the positive start to the financial year and praised the

service’s approach to balancing budget pressures with the need to ensure
individuals received appropriate care.

The panel agreed to note the reports.

Palliative and End of Life Care

Councillor Aspinall (Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care) introduced
the Palliative and End of Life Care item and discussed:

2)

The item had originated from a Motion on Notice brought to Full Council in
March 2025. Due to the complexity of the subject, it had been referred to
the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee for
detailed consideration. Members were asked to consider the original motion
alongside a written statement submitted by Councillor Beer.

Chris Morley (NHS Devon ICB) added:

b) Progress was continuing against the locality delivery plan for end of life care

in Plymouth and West Devon. The End of Life Steering Group continued to
meet regularly and was aligned with the wider Devon Integrated Care Board
(ICB) programme to improve end of life experiences across the region;

Progress had been made against the previously agreed improvement plan,
with most actions marked as complete or underway. Key developments
included:
i. Expansion of the end of life register into an integrated care planning
system linked to the Summary Shared Care Record;
i. Establishment of a central information point for individuals and system
partners, supported by St Luke’s Care Coordination Hub;
iii. Completion of demand and capacity analysis, now informing the Devon
commissioning plan;
iv.  Completion of service options appraisal and audit of care processes;
v. Reallocation of training resources from the Hive system to broader
management and leadership training for care providers;

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel Tuesday 15 July 2025



d)

Page 6

vi. Continued development of the Compassionate City programme and
work on death literacy.

A significant reduction had been observed in the number of deaths occurring
in hospital, particularly at Derriford Hospital, indicating progress in
supporting individuals to die in their preferred place of care.

Laura Daniel (Interim Cluster Manager, University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust)
provided an update on the end of life pathway at Mount Gould Hospital and

discussed:

e) The pathway had expanded to |12 beds, operating at approximately 90%
occupancy to ensure availability for urgent admissions from the Emergency
Department (ED);

f) Over 420 patients had been supported since the pathway’s inception, with
positive feedback from patients, families and staff;

g) Integration of the Marie Curie team had strengthened communication and
coordination between acute and community teams. Governance and scrutiny
processes were in place to ensure continuous learning and improvement;

h) The pathway aimed to support patients with both short-term and longer-
term needs, recognising the therapeutic value of the environment;

i) The ED team had focused on preventing unnecessary conveyance to hospital,
and Plan-Do-Study-Act (PDSA) cycles were being used to track service
improvements;

i) Work was ongoing to embed Electronic Treatment Escalation Plans (ETEPs)

and advance care planning across the Trust.

Tricia Davies (St Luke’s Hospice) provided an update on the Care Coordination Hub
and discussed:

k)

The Hub had launched in April 2025 following public consultation, and aimed
to provide a single point of contact for patients, families and professionals
navigating end of life services;

The Hub offered rapid response, shared decision-making, specialist advice,
and support with TEP discussions. It had received 319 calls in its first six
weeks, primarily from family carers, patients, district nurses and GPs;

m) The Hub worked closely with South Western Ambulance Service NHS

Foundation Trust (SWAST) and University Hospitals Plymouth, with daily
contact to coordinate care and prevent unnecessary hospital admissions;

n) The service aimed to ensure that patients were supported to remain at home

wherever possible, with rapid deployment of St Luke’s response teams;

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel Tuesday 15 July 2025



95.

Page 7

o) The Hospice continued to hold learning events when care fell short, and
worked collaboratively with system partners to improve outcomes.

The Panel discussed the written statement submitted by Councillor Beer, which
expressed concerns about the quality of end of life care and suggested that services
were failing. Members acknowledged the emotional nature of the statement and the
historical context, particularly during the COVID-19 pandemic. Members expressed
disappointment that Councillor Beer had been unable to attend the meeting, and
noted that many of the concerns raised in the statement had since been addressed
through the improvements presented.

p) It was acknowledged that services did not always get it right, but that robust
governance and learning processes were in place to address shortcomings;

q) The Committee discussed the distinction between palliative care and end of
life care. It was noted that palliative care could extend over months or years,
and that care planning should reflect the full trajectory of a patient’s
condition;

r) Members requested further information on integrated care pathways (ICPs)
for palliative care, including how care planning addressed nutrition, mobility

and holistic needs;

s) Members agreed that the improvements made over the past 12 months had
been substantial and commended all partners for their work.

The panel agreed:
I. To note the progress made against the original Motion on Notice;

2. That no further reports on this topic would be scheduled unless new
evidence of concern emerged;

3. To thank all partners for their continued work and commitment to improving
end of life care in Plymouth.

Action: Officers to provide further detail on integrated care pathways for palliative
care, including care planning for patients not in the final days of life.

Action: Councillor Aspinall to write to Plymouth’s three Members of Parliament
requesting support for additional funding for palliative and end of life services.

NHS Reforms and Re-structures
Peter Collins (Chief Medical Officer, NHS Devon Integrated Care Board) presented
an update on the Government’s proposed reforms to NHS England and the
restructuring of Integrated Care Boards (ICBs), and discussed:

a) The Government had signalled its intention in March 2025 to abolish NHS

England and restructure the commissioning and organising functions of the

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel Tuesday 15 July 2025



Page 8

health service, including ICBs. This included a requirement for ICBs to reduce
their running costs by 33%;

b) As part of the national specification, smaller ICBs were expected to align and
merge with neighbouring systems. NHS England had approved the proposed
clustering of Devon, Cornwall and the Isles of Scilly ICBs into a single entity.
Work was underway to appoint a new Chair, Chief Executive and Executive
Team, and to design the structure of the new organisation;

c) Restructuring was intended to improve strategic commissioning, with a focus
on understanding population needs and holding services to account for
delivery. Members were assured that there should be no immediate impact
on service delivery for residents, and that the changes were not expected to
cause delays in treatment.

In response to questions, the Panel discussed:

d) There was no expectation of increased funding beyond annual national
growth allocations. Devon ICB currently received support funding from NHS
England to manage its deficit, but future support was not guaranteed;

e) The 33% reduction applied to the ICB’s running cost budget, not the total
commissioning budget of £3 billion. The running cost budget was calculated
nationally at £18.76 per head of population, recently increased to £19 due to
inflation. For Devon, Torbay and Plymouth (population approx. 1.24 million),
this equated to a running cost budget of approximately £23 million;

f) Councillors queried the potential for shared services and economies of scale
across Devon and Cornwall, including IT, payroll and procurement. It was
clarified that the creation of ICBs had not followed a uniform model, and
functions varied between systems. This presented an opportunity for ICBs to
ensure that the teams were focused on the important matters and that
important functions were transferred back to providers in the long term;

g) Kevin Orford (Chair of Devon ICB) had chosen not to stand for
reappointment due to personal reasons. Expressions of interest had been
invited for the new Chair of the merged Devon and Cornwall ICB, and an
announcement was expected shortly;

h) Councillor Aspinall commended the staff of the ICB for their hard work and
professionalism during the restructuring process, noting the challenges of a
33% reduction in staffing;

i) Peter Collins offered to return to the Committee at a future meeting to
provide further updates and engage with elected members on the
implications of the reforms.

The Panel agreed to:

I. Note the update on NHS reforms and restructuring;

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel Tuesday 15 July 2025



96.

97.

98.

Page 9

2. Request a future update once the new ICB structure and leadership were in
place;

3. Thank Peter Collins and the ICB staff for their continued work and
commitment during the transition.

Action: Officers to invite Peter Collins to return to the Committee once further
details of the ICB merger and leadership appointments are confirmed.

Work Programme

The Chair invited members to suggest topics for inclusion in the Committee’s work
programme. The panel agreed to add the following items:

a) Carers Strategy and Carers Action Plan;

b) Outcome of the Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspection of Plymouth
City Council’s Adult Social Care services, subject to readiness/publication;

c) Winter Planning;

d) Dental services.
Action: Officers to arrange a visit to University Hospitals Plymouth (UHP) to view
the new Urgent Treatment Centre and combined outpatients facility, which was
expected to open in August/September.

Action: Officers to arrange a visit to the Same Day Emergency Care (SDEC) unit.

Action: Officers to progress a Joint Select Committee regarding Transitions from
Children’s to Adults Social Care services.

Action Log
Following a review of the Action Log, the Panel agreed to:

I. Request an update on the armed forces GP and dental provision item at the
next meeting;

2. Note the progress of the Action Log.
Exempt Business

There were no items of Exempt Business.

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel Tuesday 15 July 2025



Page 10

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel Tuesday 15 July 2025



OFFICIAL Page 11 Agenda Item 5

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny
Panel PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

Date of meeting: 21 November 2025

Title of Report: Adult Social Care Finance Report — Month 6 25/26

Lead Member: Councillor Mary Aspinall (Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social
Care)

Lead Strategic Director: Gary Walbridge (Strategic Director for Adults, Health and
Communities)

Author: Rebecca Sampson (Interim Lead Accountancy Manager)

Contact Email: Rebecca.sampson@plymouth.gov.uk

Your Reference: ASCFINM625

Key Decision: No

Confidentiality: Part | - Official

Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to inform members around the forecast budget position for Adult Social
Care at Month 6 2025/26.

Recommendations and Reasons
I. The Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee notes the Adult Social
Care Finance report.

Alternative options considered and rejected
. N/A

Relevance to the Corporate Plan and/or the Plymouth Plan

This finance report links to the following Corporate Plan priorities:

I. Working with the NHS to provide better access to health, care and dentistry
2. Keeping children, adults and communities safe.

Implications for the Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:
Provides information about budgets set in line with the Medium Term Financial Plan.

Financial Risks

N/A information only

Legal Implications

N/A information only

Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:
N/A



OFFICIAL
Page 12 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Other Implications: e.g. Health and Safety, Risk Management, Child Poverty:

* When considering these proposals members have a responsibility to ensure they give due regard to the Council’s duty to promote
equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote good relations between people who share protected
characteristics under the Equalities Act and those who do not.

N/A

Appendices

Ref. Title of Appendix Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)
If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate
why it is not for publication by virtue of Part |of Schedule |2A
of the Local Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.

| 2 3 4 5 6 7

A ASC Finance Report — Month 6 2025/26

Background papers:

*Add rows as required to box below

Please list all unpublished, background papers relevant to the decision in the table below. Background papers are unpublished works,
relied on to a material extent in preparing the report, which disclose facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the

work is based.

Title of any background paper(s) Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)

If somelall of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it
is not for publication by virtue of Part |of Schedule | 2A of the Local
Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.

| 2 3 4 5 6 7

Sign off:

Fin OW. | Leg N/A | Mon |N/A |HR N/A | Asset | N/A | Strat | N/A
25.26. Off s Proc
093

Orriginating Senior Leadership Team member: Gary Walbridge

Please confirm the Strategic Director(s) has agreed the report? Yes

Date agreed:

Cabinet Member approval: ClIr Aspinall (Cabinet Member for H&ASC) via email

Date approved:




OFFICIAL Page 13

ASC - BUDGET MONITORING MONTH 6

ASC Scrutiny Update PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

MONTH 6 UPDATE
ADULTS, HEALTH AND COMMUNITIES’ DIRECTORATE

Adults, Health and Communities Directorate Forecast

Forecast Net
Adults, Health and Communities Budget Forecast Variance
Directorate £m £m £m

Adult Social Care 113.455 115.997 2.243

The Adults, Health and Communities Directorate is reporting an overspend of £3.162m in Month 6, of which
£2.243m relates to Adult Social Care.

The following pressures and mitigations are flagged:

e £0.824m pressure within Domiciliary Care as it continues to see an increased demand for
intermediate care to support clients’ discharge from hospital.

e £3.519m pressure due to an increase in demand across bedded care through each pathway and
£0.477m across other care packages, as assessment waitlists have been reduced.

e (£2.310m) additional loint Funding and client income have been identified, correlating to increased
package expenditure. A joint funding panel has been established to improve the process and
maximise income.

e The Directorate’s Budget Containment Group has been mobilised for 2025/26 and activity is
ongoing; the function of the group is to focus on emerging high-risk areas, assigning task groups to
identify actions to be taken to contain spend, such as focused package reviews. Work identified
includes focus on review and analysis of Domiciliary Care, Bedded Care fees levels and pipeline
demand, timescales and planning in increase client in Direct Payments and a focus on the Short-
Term Residential clients to identify any barriers to long term care.

o £2.074m (75%) of the in-year savings target for the Directorate have been achieved to date.

Updates on Budget 2026/27

e National Living Wage from April 2026/27 has been assumed at £12.80 per hour.
e Modelling for the impact on ASC budgets in 2026/27 is underway to be included in ongoing budget
discussions.



This page is intentionally left blank



OFFICIAL Page 15 Agenda Item 6

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny
Panel PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

Date of meeting: 21 November 2025

Title of Report: Adult Social Care Activity and Performance Report

Lead Member: Councillor Mary Aspinall (Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social
Care)

Lead Strategic Director: Gary Walbridge (Strategic Director for Adults, Health and

Communities)
Author: Gill Nicholson, Head of Innovation & Delivery for Adult Social Care

Andy Williams, Lead for Adult Social Care (Livewell Southwest)

Contact Email: Gill.nicholson@plymouth.gov.uk
Your Reference: N/A

Key Decision: No

Confidentiality: Part | - Official

Purpose of Report
The purpose of this report is to provide Scrutiny panel members with a performance update for Adult
Social Care, including levels of demand for services and any priority actions.

Recommendations and Reasons
I. Itis recommended that Scrutiny acknowledge the content of the report.

Alternative options considered and rejected
I. None

Relevance to the Corporate Plan and/or the Plymouth Plan
Plymouth Plan Priority: A Healthy City
Corporate Plan Priority: Keeping children, adults and communities safe

Implications for the Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:
None - the Adult Social Care budget is monitored closely, including the numbers of people needing a
new service and the associated costs of services

Financial Risks

None — Information only

Legal Implications

None — Information only



OFFICIAL
Page 16 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:
Services for Adult Social Care are provided locally to the city as much as possible to enable people to
remain close to their communities. This also aims to reduce the amount of travel required.

Other Implications: e.g. Health and Safety, Risk Management, Child Poverty:

* When considering these proposals members have a responsibility to ensure they give due regard to the Council’s duty to promote
equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote good relations between people who share protected
characteristics under the Equalities Act and those who do not.

None

Appendices

*Add rows as required to box below

Ref. Title of Appendix Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)
If somel/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate
why it is not for publication by virtue of Part |of Schedule |2A
of the Local Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.

| 2 3 4 5 6 7

A Adult Social Care Activity & Performance
Report

Background papers:

*Add rows as required to box below

Please list all unpublished, background papers relevant to the decision in the table below. Background papers are unpublished works,
relied on to a material extent in preparing the report, which disclose facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
work is based.

Title of any background paper(s) Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)

If somelall of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it
is not for publication by virtue of Part |of Schedule | 2A of the Local
Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.

| 2 3 4 5 6 7
N/A

Sign off:

Fin N/A Leg N/A Mon N/A HR N/A Asset | N/A Strat | N/A
Off S Proc

Originating Senior Leadership Team member: Gill Nicholson, Head of Innovation & Delivery Adult
Social Care

Please confirm the Strategic Director(s) has agreed the report? Yes

Date agreed:

Cabinet Member approval: Cllr Mary Aspinall (Cabinet Member for H&ASC)

Date approved:




Adult Social Care Activity and
Performance Report PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

The vision for Adult Social Care in Plymouth is to support people to lead
"gloriously ordinary lives", living their best life doing the things that matter
to them. Living in a place they call home and supported by their own

thriving connected community, able to access high quality advice, Glossary
information and timely local services and support, where appropriate, in a ASC Adult Social Care
way that they choose.

CQC Care Quality Commission o
To support the delivery of our statutory Adult Social Care duties, Livewell LCP Local Care Partnership 8
Southwest is commissioned by the Council to provide services including ]
assessments and reviews. This is alongside some functions which are LGO Local Government Ombudsman
retained by the Council.. LWSW | Livewell Southwest -
This report shows the position against some key activity and performance NCTR | No Criteria to Reside
measures from across the health and social care system and will be SALT Short and Long Term
provided to the Health and Adult Social Care Oversight and Scrutiny
Committee on a quarterly basis. We continue to test the effectiveness of Pl Returning Home — with Reablement
how we perform and we invited the Local Government Association to support
undertake a Peer Review of Adult Social Care in January 2025. This led P2 Short Term Care — Bed Package
to a revised improvement plan, and we have seen improvements in most
areas including waiting times for assessments & reviews. P3 LongTerm Care — Nursing/Residential

The Care Quality Commission completed their inspection of Adult Social
Care in Plymouth in June 2025 and we are awaiting their report and
findings.




OFFICIAL

ADULT SOCIAL CARE KEY FACTS
2024/2025 PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

Adult Social Care service have
supported people, and many more

Average number of contacts per month
via for care & support related to advice

through our wider health & care system or activity.
activity.
000
MIT 14,563 \. 838
Completing 5,127 assessments Average number of contacts per
(including Care Act, Occupational month via our contact centre

Therapy, Carers, and Mental Capacity
Assessments) & 4,023 Reviews of
individual care support needs.

WELLBEING HUBS

; Supported the community through 182,000+ contacts

CARERS

w ﬁ All Adult Carers — 2021 Census showed 23,956 people provide unpaid
care. Of those unpaid carers, 58.1% are aged 26-64 & 35.4% are aged 65-84

Young Carers (0-17) - I ,050

8T obed

v
o

Number of safeguarding concerns raised: Number of safeguarding concerns that met
threshold for S42 enquiry

s~ 6,018 419

(reducing or removing the
identified risk in 352 cases)

D



OFFICIAL

OURVISION FORADULT SOCIAL CARE

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

o
Q
(@)
@
=
(@)

“Gloriously ordinary lives”
Social Care Futures

“People living their best life doing the things that matter to them. Living
in a place they call home and supported by their own thriving connected
community, able to access high quality advice, information and timely
local services and support, where appropriate, in a way that they
choose.”

Good quality
Effective & Ensuring care &
timely choice & support from
assessment control a skilled
workforce

Remaining
Independent




Theme |:Waiting Lists — New Care Act Assessments

Key Performance

Jul  Aug Sept Oct Target

Indicator
Number of People Waiting 614 500 503 428 430 408 327 257 272 | 288 | 306 | 301 200 v
Average number of days for
an assessments to be 24.1 315 28.9 30.2 27 27.6 25.6 24.3 154 | 23.2 | 20.1 | 16.9 20 A
completed (upon allocation)
Number of Care Act 200 | 180 154 | 223 197 186 198 | 243 | 221 | 222 | 171 | 178 A
Assessments Completed

looo 926 Care Act Assessments - Trajectory

Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24

I Waiting List Size Actual (Unallocated) == = Predicted Closing W Sustainable Waiting List

Average Number of Days Care Act Assessment
Pathway

190.3

il

45383 45413 45444 45474 45505 45536 45566 45597 45627 45658 45689 457 17 45748 45778 45809 45839 45870 45901

BN Average days to allocate Livewell Care Act Assessments (days)
Upon Allocation Average Number of Days to complete a care act assessment

e Average Days from allocation to specialist team to completion

|

586 598 614 614
500 503 0 430 g
3 g5 307 301
EERER RN E R
o

Jul-24  Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25  Jul-25 Aug-25 Sep-25 Oct-25 Nov-25 %-25

Q)

During September 2025, the Contact Centre continued to demonstrate strong
performance in line with Care Act responsibilities, with a notable reduction in
overall referral volumes and a growing proportion of referrals now coming
through self-assessment online forms. Repeat referrals within four weeks
dropped to their lowest recorded level at 17.1%, reflecting the positive impact of
new triage and call-handling processes.

Care Act assessment performance has been impacted due support a number of
provider reviews and closures. Subsequently the number of unallocated
assessments rose to 301 in August. However, the average time to allocate
assessments has improved, and there is a continued focus on length of time
people are waiting to be allocated. The average time to complete an assessment
after allocation has improved to 16.9 days and remains within target
expectations. We remain committed to reduce the length of time people are
waiting with a continued focus on the longest waiting people.




Theme |:Waiting Lists — Care Act Reviews/Change of Circumstances

Key Performance
Indicator

% of long-term service
users with an assessment or | 53.40% | 55.50% | 57.10% | 59.40% | 60.70% | 60.40% | 59.70% | 57.90% | 58.2% | 58.1% | 57.7% | 57.4% 60.7% [ 4
review in the last year

% of reviews with increased

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Target

cost 17% 18% 10% 16% 21% 15% 19% 23% 18% 15% 34% 18% A
70.00% % of Long Term Service users with an Assessment or Review in the last year
6000% — T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T TS ST T TS S S Sss s C SCTSSSSS S C s SS T S S oSS — s m s m s s ==
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00% U
10.00% QD
0.00% Q
'C"»“’«C”C”C”C"C"C"C’w"'\«“'»""»“'»""»“'»‘*'»""»""»""»""»""f’é”’\f”’f’fﬁ”ﬁ’”ﬁ’”ﬁ”’f’m
O T R T i R R N T R T - L N R A N R A SR b
=
Number of reviews undertaken
421
450
367 38385 388 383 376
400 356 353354 o .
150 3 37 Currently, 57.4% of long-term service users have had an assessment or
200 review in the past year—just shy of the regional target. In August, 34% of
5o reviews resulted in increased support, highlighting our ability to identify
200 16681162 and respond to changing needs. However, this figure has since returned to
50 align with the overall yearly average.
100 . T . .. . .
5% 130 Despite added responsibilities, review productivity remains strong and in
o line with national averages. Most longstanding reviews are complete, so
while further efficiencies may be limited, we're focused on reviewing new
S G A S A A A N B =S friay o I T g
w0 o & W P Y & cases promptly. Reducing waiting lists and delivering timely, responsive

care remains a top priority.

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL




Theme |: Occupational Therapy — Minor Adaptations

Key Performance

Indicator

Unallocated Waiting List

474
199

Narrative

Longest Waiter

Mean Wait (in days)

Section 2 Unallocated Waiting List

Section 2 assessments are a key part of Occupational Therapy, helping

identify the right equipment, adaptations, or support to help people live
independently and prevent, delay or reduce the development of needs for
care and support.

o
The number of people waiting for a Section 2 Occupational Therapy QD
assessment has reduced over recent months, but further work is need%d
to bring waiting lists down. To support a clear recovery plan, a phasedn)

May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25 Sep-25 Oct-25 Nov-25 Dec-25 target approach will be undertaken to achieve the long-term pathway
e EEEEsEhase 1) aspiration. The first phased target is to reduce the average wait to 463
days by November 2025,

Section 2 Length of Time Waiting

600 _ - 857 Livewell Southwest are engaged in an improvement programme which will
500 459 D gy — — AT 504 formulate a clear recovery plan aligned with the wider transformation
400 programme, by proposing a shift toward early intervention and
300 community-based support. Key initiatives include encouraging private
211 200 199 195 equipment purchases for those without eligible needs, reintroducing
200 115 services like Care & Repair, and better use of community hubs to reduce
100 reliance on formal care. The plan also suggests raising the minor
0 adaptation budget threshold and streamlining access to basic equipment
May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25 Sep-25 through self-referral and partnerships with local suppliers releasing
Average Number of Days == == Longest Waiter capacity within the team to concentrate on the waiting list backlog.

[y

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL




Theme |: Occupational Therapy — Care and Support

Key Performance

Indicator

132
612
188

Narrative

Unallocated Waiting List 126

Longest Waiter 588

Mean Wait (in days) 192

Section 9 Unallocated Waiting List

These individuals are already receiving care but require assessments for
adaptations, equipment, or rehabilitation under Section 9 of the Care A&

In September, 126 people were waiting for assessment—exceeding th
Phase | target of 103. The average waiting time is 192 days, with the NG}
longest recorded wait at 612 days.While some progress has been made)
May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25 Sep-25 further action is needed to reduce both the number of people waiting and
the length of time they wait. The service continues to prioritise person-
centred assessments to ensure residents receive the support they need to
live safely and independently.

I Unallocated Waiting List Target (Phase )

Section 9 Length of Time Waiting

700 Livewell Southwest exploring opportunities to address these challenges.
600 - —=sgt—— " 6R-- - 5gg These opportunities include phasing out non-essential evidence provision,
500 >Z —350 introducing online financial screening prior to Disabled Facilities Grant
400 Pl (DFG) assessments, and developing integrated teams to improve
300 . /27,I 85 9 throughput and reduce dup!icatio.n. The plan also supports the use of
200 183 188 video assessments for housing suitability and explores accreditation for
100 93 non-Occupational Therapy (OT) staff to prescribe equipment. These

0 steps aim to ensure assessments are timely, targeted, and legally

May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25 Sep-25 compliant.

. Average Number of Days = = =Longest Waiter

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL




Theme 2: Residential and Nursing Care

Key Performance
Indicator

2C Adults aged 65+ whose
needs are met by admission to
residential/nursing care homes
(per 100,000 population)
Adults aged 18-64 whose needs
are met by admission to
residential/nursing care homes
(per 100,000 population).
Numbers in receipt of nursing
Care

Numbers in receipt of
Residential Care

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr

368 | 426.5 | 498.7 | 562.5 | 614.1 | 7109 | 41.2 90.7 131.9 | 2102 | 261.7 | 355.9

6.2 8.1 10 11.2 12.4 15.6 31 5 7.5 9.3 9.3 13.7

243 244 249 241 242 246 245 250 256 266 277 281

735 734 738 733 731 725 738 748 761 766 756 772

Narrative

Numbers in Receipt of Local Authority

Funded residential or nursing care o))
Q
The number of older adults (aged 65+) being supported in residential affd

nursing care homes continues to rise, with both categories now exceedﬁg
target levels. As of the latest report, 772 people are in receipt of
residential care and 281 are receiving nursing care, marking the highest
residential care placements since April 2023. This reflects sustained and
growing demand for long-term care.

780
770
760
750
740
730
720
710
700
690
680

While nursing care numbers have fluctuated, the overall trend shows a
steady increase in people needing this support. These patterns highlight
increasing pressure on care home capacity and underline the need for
ongoing strategic planning to ensure services remain sustainable and able
Q,Q,Q%%Wu,\,bx%b\:\},\,%ussc,g going 8Ic p g

Vo : v , .
&N P 0 o & P o o o & to meet the needs of Plymouth’s older residents.

Numbers in receipt of Residential Care e Numbers in receipt of nursing Care

PLYMOUTH

<ITY counciL




Theme 3: Domiciliary Care

Key Performance
Indicator

Jul Aug Sept Oct

Number of people in receipt | 1000 | 1095 | 1724 | 1135 | 1140 | 1149 | 1165 | 1168 | 1167 | 1179 | 1173 | 1184 A
of domiciliary care
Of which in Intermediate 72 54 58 68 115 1 13 91 81 71 72 A
Placements
% of Domiciliary Care package |o; g0/l 04 000 | 85.20% | 93.50% | 94.60% | 85.30% | 85.10% | 78.30% | 78.30% | 78.30% | 81.80% | 81.8% AV
opened within | week
Number of Domiciliary Care

200 | 205 | 219 | 260 | 244 | 221 | 229 171 165 | 245 186 | 230 A
packages started
1400 S ——————————————————————————————————_—_—_——_—___—————
1200
1000 /——~_/—/\_/__/_/___ ;?
800 @

Number of Domiciliary Care packaged started within 1 week

(average)
it = =l Tou e e atx e o e
Y .?Qﬂ’ d;v .&\n’ q;a.ﬂ & OQ,"» -:;*n' A g

N S = et 3f RO

=

==
PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

g o o
% -
) \Q.\

The number of people receiving domiciliary care in Plymouth has steade'
increased over the past year, reaching | 184 people in August. The o
proportion of care packages started within one week has recently improved
to 81.8%, following a period where this figure was lower than usual. The
number of new care packages started each month has fluctuated, with 245
new packages opened in August. The service continues to support a
growing number of residents, with ongoing efforts to improve the speed at
which care is arranged and to ensure timely support for those in need.

Continued engagement with local providers has helped manage the waiting
list,and a strategic review of market capacity is underway to support timely
access to care.




Theme 4: Reablement

Number of people in receipt

Pecentage of people (65+) at home 91 days after discharge

86.00%

84.00%

Jul-23
Aug23 I
Sep-23 NN
Oct-23 N
Nov-23 N

Dec-23 NN
Jan-24 I

82.00%

80.00% M- ————————————-—

78.00%

76.00%

74.00%

72.00%

70.00%
38 §
&5 5
>z = <

Mar-24

Jan-25

25
25

Feb-25 NN |
Mar-25 I |

Apr-25
May-

|

Jun

25
25
25

Jul

Aug
Sep.

I 0D Percentage of people (65+) at home 91 days after discharge Month

98 95 100 133 137 125 149 130 159 144 148 136 N/A v
of Reablement
Percentage of people (65+) 82.80
at home 91 days after 79.90%| 79.80% | 79.90% | 80.50% | 79.60% | 79.30% | 83.20% | 82.80% | 83.9% 7 81.5% | 81.6% 80% A
discharge °
Number of reablement 93 | 104 | 112 | 118 | 104 | 118 | 110 | 108 133 122 12 | 110 A
packages started in period
':ec:i‘f; reablement hoursin | 501 | 3151 | 3842 | 4356 | 4416 | asa7 | 4097 | 3144 | 3833 | 5214 | 5172 | 4993 v
Average Length of Time in
receipt of Reablement (In 5.7 4.86 3.46 4.03 4.61 4.99 4.8 5.5 44 45 52
weeks)

Narrative

abed

The average length of reablement care in Plymouth remains below thd\
national target at 5.3 weeks, and the percentage of people remaining at
home 91 days after discharge continues to exceed the 80% target.

Despite significant resourcing challenges in August due to high sickness
absence and annual leave, the service continues working on prevention
and recruitment to address staffing gaps. Early planning is underway for a
bridging service to reduce waiting times for those awaiting long-term care.

The number of people receiving reablement remains at an effective level,

and the service continues to prioritise timely and positive outcomes for
residents.




Key Performance
Indicator

Number of people in
receipt of direct payments
Number of new Direct
Payments in Month
People in receipt of direct
payments

Over 65

People in receipt of direct
payments

Under 65

Number of people in receipt of Direct payments

650
640
63
&

ko
= R = ]

e = +
L= B = |

Booab
A~

B Number of people in receipt of direct payments

=

=
PLYMOUTH

CITY counciL

'\.'
G‘- 4 QQ;K" ('.‘\'-:‘.9 \-..Q“ '\& ?_\3% Q Q' (< 7.'\”

Theme 5: Direct Payments

f"\i‘) i'\:’:
)

610

800

590

5 I
5

260

\\‘5\‘ 'Q-“'

123 123

Narrative

The number of people accessing the direct payment services is in line
with the internal target for the first time this financial year. People under
65 make up 20% of the current users.

The in-house banking service is now live as an internal function, and
work continues to strengthen training across Livewell Southwest to
support improved engagement.




OFFICIAL

P1 Performance Update

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

@ P1Discharges @P2Discharges @ P3Discharges

This metric represents the proportion of patients with | =

No Criteria to Reside and is calculated from when the
patient is medically fit for discharge and when they leave
the hospital.
Our target for NCTR is 9%. v

September O(taher Nuvember December January February March April June July August September

Some of the contributing factors to support improvement in performance:

*  Hospital ward improvement programme - an increased focus has been placed on planning for discharge. With better use of
EDDs and clearer planning, particularly into the weekend, the trust have reduced late cancellations due to avoidable issues.

*  Use of PDDs to keep wards informed of discharge bookings and support patient readiness

*  Since the closure of the MGH capacity the IHDT have been reviewing patients identified as P2 community hospital and offering a
second tier of challenge. This has resulted in pathway change (from P2 to P1) for 24 patients over the past 4 weeks.

*  Daily visibility of capacity and better collaborative working across IHDT / D2A Team to utilise cancelled slots where possible




OFFICIAL Page 29 Agenda Item 7

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny
Panel PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

Date of meeting: 21 November 2025

Title of Report: Winter Planning

Lead Member: Councillor Mary Aspinall (Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social
Care)

Lead Strategic Director: Gary Walbridge (Strategic Director for Adults, Health and
Communities)

Author: Michael Whitcombe, Louise Ford, Chris Morley

Contact Email: christopher.morley@nbhs.net

Your Reference: N/A

Key Decision: No

Confidentiality: Part | - Official

Purpose of Report
To outline Plymouth system winter preparations and provide assurance to the Health and Adult Social
Care Scrutiny Panel.

Recommendations and Reasons
I. That the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel review, comment and support the plans
set out within the report.

Alternative options considered and rejected
I. Not consider this report - Rejected

Relevance to the Corporate Plan and/or the Plymouth Plan
Working with NHS to provide better access to health, care and dentistry;
Keeping children, adults and communities safe;

Providing quality public services.

Implications for the Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:
N/A

Financial Risks

N/A — Information Only

Legal Implications

N/A — Information Only

Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:
N/A



OFFICIAL
Page 30 PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Other Implications: e.g. Health and Safety, Risk Management, Child Poverty:
N/A

Appendices

*Add rows as required to box below

Ref. Title of Appendix Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)
If somel/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate
why it is not for publication by virtue of Part |of Schedule |2A
of the Local Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.

I 2 3 4 5 6 7

A Winter Planning Presentation

Background papers:

*Add rows as required to box below

Please list all unpublished, background papers relevant to the decision in the table below. Background papers are unpublished works,
relied on to a material extent in preparing the report, which disclose facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the

work is based.

Title of any background paper(s) Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)

If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it
is not for publication by virtue of Part |of Schedule |2A of the Local
Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.

| 2 3 4 5 6 7

Sign off:

Fin N/A | Leg N/A | Mon |N/A |HR N/A | Asset | N/A | Strat | N/A
Off s Proc

Originating Senior Leadership Team member: Gary Walbridge

Please confirm the Strategic Director(s) has agreed the report? Yes

Date agreed: 25/09/25

Cabinet Member approval: Councillor Mary Aspinall (Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social
Care). Approved by email 25/09/2025




One ./Devon &

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

niversity Hospitals
Plymouth

Winter Planning

Michael Whitcombe, University Hospitals Plymouth
Louise Ford, Plymouth City Council
Chris Morley, NHS Devon ICB

#0OneDevon



NHS

University Hospitals
Plymouth
NHS Trust

UHP Winter Plan 25/26

Michael Whitcombe — Deputy Chief Operating Officer

o
jab)
«Q
®
w
N




Contents NHS|

University Hospitals

» Executive Summary Plymouth
* Winter planning Priorities & Risks

« Data informed:

I.  Southern Hemisphere
ii. IPC

* Actions & Mitigations

* Vaccination Programme

cc abed



Summary

Winter pressures a recurrent challenge driven by seasonal iliness (including influenza, COVID-19, RSV, and m
norovirus), increased admissions, delayed discharges, and workforce pressures.

University Hospitals

: Plymouth
In 2024/25, UHP experienced: NHS Trust

* Bed occupancy rates above 98%

* 40 Patients in ED (at 8am) awaiting onward bed

* Nearly 20% of Patients stayed in ED for >12hrs

* Monthly ambulance handover lost hours exceeding 7,500hours at peak, mean handover of 3hours.

This year, NHS England has mandated that all Trusts and systems must:

L)

>

» Deliver ambulance handovers within 30 minutes.

L)

K/
0‘0

Improve Category 2 response performance (18mins — current average 26mins)

/
L4

Maximise vaccination uptake for frontline staff towards the pre-pandemic uptake level of 2018/19.This means that in
6%23/266 V|\_/§ \?Vlm to improve uptake by at least 5 percentage points. Last year 43%, agreed a stretch target of 60% for
an

Enhance community-based flow and discharge pathways.

Increase the number of patients receiving urgent care in primary, community and mental health settings, including
Urgent Community Response teams and virtual ward.

X/
L4

/
L X4

K/
L4

Improve flow through hospitals, focus on reducing patients waiting over 12 hours
Improve patient discharge times, and eliminate internal discharge delays of more than 48 hours in all settings

X/
L4




Summary NHS

University Hospitals

=  System approach with partners and the acute hospital to inform plan Plymouth
= Workstreams in 7 Key Areas
= Unmitigated Acute Bed Gap is 70-90

= We are currently forecasting a delivery of 50% of the One Plan objﬂe
which leaves a -39 bed gap A -

Gg obed

¢ Our One Plan is a strategic improvement plan to reduce attenda
Emergency Department jointly working with commu@8nity partners and Livewell
to get our patients the right care, in the right place at the right time.




Objectives — One Plan link NHS.

University Hospitals
Plymouth

e Maintain Ambulance handover times of less than >45mins. NHS Trust
¢ Maintain length of stay reduction by a further 0.5days (1day total reduction)

e Launch a robust Vaccination programme — delivers hard to reach areas with a
5% increase.

e Empower, Support and Improve community management of patients reducing
conveyance (Linked to ICB schemes)

e Support community management of infectious patients and reduce the need
for acute hospital attendance.

e Support and maintain Elective care
e Proactive management of Respiratory lliness and prevention of admission.

777 T
743 A a8

9¢ abed

-_- 3 Iy F
B . ¥ =
P =
|
d—l




Performance Summary 4hr Performance - All Types
I UHP Performance === Al Types Trajectory == National Target
L. 80%
All Types 4 Hour standard currently at 72% this is a 6%
. . . . 70%
improvement from last year. Remaining committed to
improve. oo
50%
Ambulance handovers has seen significant 40%
improvement against our operating plan trajectory — 30%
further improvements to be made. 20%
-
10% b
®
67.0% | 70.0%
UHP ambulance handovers - Hrs lost 0% I 0 e w6 e e
g ¢ ¢ 4 4 4 g g g g g 9y
Hours Lost Timely Handover Process Target e=?25/26 Trajectory § § § g § § g g % § % §

6000

5000

4000

(%]
o
>
o
e

May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25 Sep-25 Oct-25 Nov-25 Dec-25 Jan-26 Feb-26 Mar-26




Key Assumptions

Q
a

NHS

University Hospitals

Flu/Covid season will follow patterns similar to last year, peak December week P'Ymg’}‘rﬁs'}

Emergency and Non-Elective Demand will continue at plan (1.5% for the winter)

48/49

No Criteria to Reside will remain between 10% and 13% until March 26 (Target
is 9%)

Flu and Covid Vaccination adult program starts 1st October aligned with our
Local authority and community providers

Protected Elective Capacity will be maintained across Cardiac, Neurosurgery,
Orthopaedics, Transplant and Oncology

One Plan schemes include the use of Virtual wards to support releasing capacity
and managing our patients safely in their home environment.

g¢ abed

Internal productivity and flow improvement program will continue to deliver

ICB Winter Demand and Capacity Schemes will deliver intended benefits and to
deliver a 20 a day reduction in emergency attendances




NHS

University Hospitals

Plymouth
NHS Trust

Learning from Southern
Hemisphere

6E abed




Modelled demand flu (Australia)

Figure 6: Notified influenza cases and five-year average* by year and week of diagnosis, Australia,
2022 to 27 July 2025

32,000
w 28,000+
@
§ 24,000
E 20,000
@
16,000
12,000
8,000

MNumber of influ

4,000 1~

0_

B

P T
' !
.f \‘. R
LN
! , ; ™~ \
/X N \\
.-—'"’-‘\J‘é;’ ‘\, \‘}\{*‘ . .
L DA, =ty
10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30 32 34 36 38 40 42 44 46 483 50 52
Week of diagnosis

som 2022 == 2023 = 2024 == 2025 = Five-year average

Source: Mational Notifiable Diseases Surveillance System (NMDSS)
* The years 2020 and 2021 are excluded when comparing the current season to historical periods when influenza virus has circulated without public health

restrictions. As such, the five-year average incudes the years 2018 to 2019 and 2022 to 2024. Please refer to the Technical Supplement
the five-year average.

Flu Vaccine Uptake Comparison by Age Group

,“ - England (2024/25)
70 4 Em Austraba (2023)
60.0%
60 4
# 501
_i Q2 e 42 6%
&0 0r's
B
5.o%
¥ .
i . X.0% 30.0%
41 8%
20 1 18 4% %25
41%
) l
Li
& '&J’ f (f' &
& o > £ T
-y ,!? » s p
. o K “ & ﬁf Q
& Q
D

Figure 14: Total number of patients (children and adults) admitted with a severe acute respiratory

2 4 6 8

for interpretation of jnfection to sentinel hospitals by disease and week of admission, Australia, 1 January to 13 July 2825

I LI L L L L L L L L AL . N L AL AL L L DL LB
10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30 32

Week of admission
B Ihfluenza @ RSY W COVID-19



itive

Below shows number of Adult G&A occupied beds per day for Influenza/Covid post

Patients - Winter 2024/25

mCOVD mFlu

ty Hospitals

iversi

Un

140

Plymouth

120

NHS Trust

Patients who were positive for Covid or flu.

100

Action to provide Cohorting & Side room plan to mitigate

Peak after Christmas of just over 120 beds.

=] =]
o w

spaqg pajdnaoco

20

Page 41

Admissions from Care Homes
Occupied beds per day for positive infection disease Patients - Winter

SZ0Z/enfoe
STOZ/E0/vE
S202/e0/mT
STOZ/E0ET
GTOZ/E0/90
SZoz/ensme
Szoz/enfee
SZ0Zren/st
STOZ/C0/0T
SE0Z/20/70
Se0z/T0/6e
SE02/10/ES
STOZ/TOMT
GZ0Z/TOMT
S202/10/50
VZ0Z/CT/0E
Feog/eTive
AN A AN S
VE02/ELET
VZ0Z/e1/90
VEOE/TT/OE
Ve0Z/TT/ve
Y0/ TL/BT
LA ARR A
FZ0Z/TT/90
FE02/0T/TE
ve0Z/01/52e
VZ0E/0T/eT
FZOZ/OT/ET
VZOZ/OT/LO
v20g/0t/10
YZ0z/e0/sT
Fa0C/e0/MeT
Ve0Z/e0/ET
wa0e/el/L0
vZ0z/e0/mo

2024/25

mC.Diff mCOIVD ®mFlu = MRSA

16

Care Home cohort, accounting for ~10% of

SC0Z/E0/0E
S202/e0/9T
SCOZ/E0RE
S20Z/20/81
SEOZ/E0TT
S20T/E0/OT
S202/E0/90
S202/E0/20
GSZOZ/T0/SE
SE0Z/20/01
GZO0Z/20/50
SZOZ/T00
SZ0Z/T0/6E
S202/10/5T
§202/10/12
SCOZ/TOMLT
SZOT/TOET
SC0Z/T0/E0
SZ0Z/T0/S0
S202/T0/T0
VCOZ/CL/BE
LANAAR A
LA A4
LAVAANE
[ AITATANTAN
FEOZ/ET/B0
LAArA S ]
FEOZ/TT/OE
FEOZ/TL/OE
FEOZ/TLREE
FEOZ/TL/BT
FOT/TTIFT
FEOZ/TTOT
PEOZ/TT/90
LA AR TAY
FEOZ/OL/6E
PeOZ/OT/ST
LA AL TTA
VEOT/OTILT
PEOT/OT/ET
FEZOZ/0T/E0
FZ0Z/0T/S0
FEOZ/OT/T0

14
12
10
8
&
4
2
0

total. Focus on 15 beds lost with actions for
Hospital to community to prevent admission



NHS
Oneq Devon University Hospitals

Plymouth
NHS Trust

Q
leewe"_ University Hospitals

mmmmmmm

Healthy Lives

Our Approach: Actions &
Mitigations

2 abed



https://wtcs.pressbooks.pub/nursingfundamentals/chapter/2-3-communicating-with-patients/
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/

Workstreams:

L/

o0

4

o

4

o

4

o

4

o

*

o

4

o

4

Community Services care & Admission avoidance
Acute Hospital & Community Surge & Demand
Protected Elective Capacity

Vaccination program

IP&C Community & Acute — Prevention/Response
Workforce — Wellbeing/Choose Well
Timely Hospital Discharge (NCTR) working group

NHS

University Hospitals

Plymouth
NHS Trust

¢ obed




Key Actions : NHS

|ICB Demand management schemes — numerated impact and assurance University Hospitals
Hospital Discharge (NCTR)- what is required to get to >9% numerated demand Plymggr’:?t
on P1-3 discharges.

Spot purchase beds

Additional £300k funding for P1 capacity (Cornwall) until March 26

Revised Escalation & Governance structure
IP&C community prevention & admission avoidance
Devon System IP&C and Visting time-controlled deployment
Acute Virtual Ward average occupancy 37/60 - One Plan continued actions to
recover
Community Frailty Virtual Ward— Onboarding of new patients' community and
acute
Paediatric RSV surge increase management — Acute to Community support line
Navigation actions to reduce footfall to our Emergency Dept & support UTC
Dartmoor use.

o
Q
Q
D
N
~




NHS

University Hospitals

Plymouth
NHS Trust

Vaccination Program




UHP Actions:

O/
0’0

O/
0’0

O/
0’0

O/
0’0

Increase number of trained peer vaccinators ensuring improved coverage across all locations (63 in m
2024/25) University Hospitals
Shared communications across UHP, Livewell Southwest, Public Health will drive a consistent message Plymouth

Dedicated UHP communications plan, including launch and 2 week promotion at the beginning of NHS Trust

November
Immunisation Hub at Derriford Hospital — to support vaccination of staff & patients

Patient Vaccination

O/
0’0

O/
0’0

Public facing web pages to promote vaccination opportunities for patients in the Trust and acr e cit

Clearly identified outpatient, pre-operative assessment and Urgent Care settings to promot
opportunity for patients

Strengthen vaccination offer through the discharge lounge
Specialty outpatient clinic vaccination offer — Chest Clinic, Oncology, Dialysis, Maternity

Mass Vaccination Team to run sessions on the Derriford Hospital base — vaccinating patients and membe
of the public. Allowing for earlier identification of care home and house bound patients who are in hospi

ot abed



2

PLYMOUTH Devon

CITY COUNCIL

Commissioned Capacity & Social Care Winter Plan

One e Devon Proud to be part of One Devon: NHS and CARE working with communities and local organisations to improve people’s lives



OFFICIAL

Winter Surge Commissioned Capacity for Discharge

As we prepare for the upcoming winter period, our focus remains on ensuring safe, timely hospital discharge and robust community
support to manage seasonal pressures. Building on existing strengths and introducing targeted improvements, our approach aims to
reduce delays, support care providers, and maintain patient flow across the system. This overview outlines the measures already in
place and the plans being developed to enhance resilience and responsiveness during peak demand.

These elements are already active and supporting discharge and community care:
*  Advice Plymouth Integration: Coordinated support across health and social care services.
. Hospital Discharge Coordination: Allied Health Professionals and discharge teams working together to streamline processes.
. Community Support Pathways: Established links to voluntary sector and wraparound services post-discharge.
. Infection Prevention & Control Measures: Embedded across care settings to reduce winter-related risks.
. Business Continuity Plans: In place for care providers to maintain service delivery during peak pressures.

g abed

These initiatives are being developed or enhanced to further support winter pressures:

. Review of Demand & Capacity Plans for Surge: Refresh modelling (in-line with op plan projections/anticipated additional

requirements). This will inform additional capacity plans (P1 — peri re-alignment, I@H improvement plan, brokerage improvements,
P2 — Block bed procurement (mobilisation date TBC)

. Data Integration with Hospital Networks: Improving forecasting and coordination using real-time data; single version of the truth
. Enhanced Community Mobilisation: Expanding voluntary sector involvement and social support for discharged patients.

. Optimisation of Brokerage Functions: Strengthening bed bureau and brokerage services to improve market intelligence and
improve sourcing times.

. Integrated Commissioning Oversight: Weekly oversight group (joint PCC & ICB) overseeing Intermediate Care
commissioning activity, monitoring emerging pressure points and implementing mitigations




Plymouth - Social Care Winter Plan Actions

Social care plays a critical role in maintaining system flow and supporting vulnerable individuals during the winter period. Our
winter plan outlines key actions to strengthen resilience, ensure continuity of care, and reduce avoidable hospital admissions.
By focusing on workforce support, provider engagement, and targeted community interventions, we aim to deliver safe,
responsive care throughout the seasonal pressures.

These elements are already active
*  Promotion of Vaccinations: Messaging to eligible groups via community providers such as Advice Plymouth.
* Infection Prevention and Control Measures: embedded across care settings to support reducing risk of infection

61 obed

These initiatives are being developed or enhanced to further support winter pressures:
« Care Home Manager Engagement: Encouraging timely completion of discharge assessments.
-  Staff Training & Education: Focused on winter-specific challenges, discharge planning, and infection control.

«  Vaccination Programme Access: Clarifying whether NHS has a direct cascade route to providers or if Primary
Care commissioners need to facilitate access for eligible workers.

«  Support for Carers: Exploring access to Household Support Fund (HSF) to assist unpaid carers during winter
pressures.

«  Support Networks for Care Staff: Building resilience and wellbeing support for frontline workers
 Review of demand and capacity plans for surge: Ensuring the right capacity is commissioned to support need




Devon

The Vaccination Offer for Winter 2025/26

One e Devon Proud to be part of One Devon: NHS and CARE working with communities and local organisations to improve people’s lives



Autumn/Winter 25 Campaigns

Eligible Cohorts

Those aged 65 years and over =  Adults aged 75 years and over
Those aged 18 years to under 65 years in clinical risk groups = |ndividuals aged 6 months and over who are immunosuppressed.
Those in long-stay residential care homes = Residents in a care home for older adults

Pregnant women

All children aged 2 or 3 years on 31 August 2025

Primary school aged children (from Reception to Year 6)

Secondary school aged children (from Year 7 to Year 11)

All children in clinical risk groups aged from 6 months to less than 18

years

=  Carers in receipt of carer’s allowance, or those who are the main carer
of an elderly or disabled person

=  Close contacts of immunocompromised individuals

=  Frontline workers in a health and social care setting with an employer
led occupational health scheme

=  Frontline workers in a health and social care setting without an

employer led occupational health scheme including those working for a

registered residential care or nursing home, registered domiciliary care

providers, voluntary managed hospice providers and those that are

employed by those who receive direct payments (personal budgets) or

Personal Health budgets, such as Personal Assistants

Vaccinations are offered all year round but have increased focus during the winter period
75—79-year-olds and those turning 80 up to 31st August 2025
Pregnant people from 28 weeks gestation

TG obed

One\, Devon



Autuppidyinter 25 Campaigns - Timeline

women
and all We expect that
eligible most
. vaccinations will
Flu children be completed by
will start thc?f Novemb(:an_rd PEPTS
from 1_St 2025 to provide s\i:i(;%?saggglj[:j Campaian
Sept b All other the best possible paig
ptembe tocti . be completed , _ closes
2025 adult ~ Protection going oy Campaign Campaion  31u March
1 &V cohorts INto winter 12th December continues continues 2026
2025
will start
o
D
. a1
October N
Zm Campaign We expect that The programme
“ continues the majority of will end “ “
programm vaccinations will 315t January
e will start be complatad 2026
COVID-19 from 1st December
October -
2025 and
o priority _ _ _ _
RSV vaccinations arg-offeéq. all year round but have increased focus during the winter period
given to Onee,' Devon

older adult



Autumn 2025 Campaign — Delivery models for Flu and Covid-19

All PCNs offering flu, 28 PCNs offering Covid-19 from 120 GP sites

Community Pharmacies

491 Primary Schools and 74 Secondary Schools

5 Main Trust sites and community hospitals

c8000 housebound patients

371 Older adult care homes, plus non-older adult care homes

Vaccination Centres in Plymouth and Exeter

¢500 Targeted outreach clinics will take place to target underserved communities

One Y/ Devon



* Denotes opportunistic offers

Vaccination Offers

Care Home Residents: Visits by GP and Vaccination Outreach Services to every care home a minimum of 2 times to offer Flu and Covid-19 vaccinations to
every resident living in CQC registered care homes for older adults and all eligible residents living in non-older adult care homes. ¢10,000 eligible. Care home
staff will also be offered flu vaccinations.

Housebound Residents: Visits by GP and Vaccination Outreach Services to offer flu vaccinations to patients in their own homes to those registered with
their GP as housebound. ¢8,000 eligible. Carers of housebound patients will also be offered a flu vaccination either at the home visit or can access
vaccinations via GP, CP, Vaccination Centres* or Vaccination Outreach Services®.

Maternity: Offer of flu and RSV vaccinations to pregnant people on multiple occasions via maternity services and GP*.

2-3 year-olds: Offer of flu vaccinations from 1st September via GP and SAIS*. A national offer published end July 2025 to Community Pharmacy to provide
flu vaccinations to this group from 15t October may increase access. c21,000 eligible.

Children: Offer of flu vaccinations to all school children up to year 11 from 15t September through visits to every school via the School Aged Immunisation
Service. Community clinics will be offered for children not present at school including home-schooled children. GP* can also provide flu vaccinations to
school-aged children. C150,000 eligible.

G abed

Clinically Extremely Vulnerable: Offer of flu vaccinations on multiple occasions to patients meeting CEV criteria as defined in the Green Book. Available vi
GP, CP, schools, hospital inpatient and outpatient clinics, Vaccination Centres* and Vaccination Outreach Services*. Immunosuppressed patients are also
eligible for a Covid-19 vaccination via any provider.

Q

65-75 year-olds: Offer of flu vaccinations from 1st October via GP, CP, Vaccination Centres* and Vaccination Outreach Services*.

75-79 year olds: Offer of flu and Covid-19 vaccinations from 1st October via GP, CP, Vaccination Centres* and Vaccination Outreach Services*. RSV
vaccinations are offered by GP.

80 years+: Offer of flu and Covid-19 vaccinations from 1st October via GP, CP, Vaccination Centres* and Vaccination Outreach Services*.

Frontline Health and Care Workers: Offer of flu vaccinations to all FLHW via their employer led occupational health scheme. Where the FLHW is not part
of an occupational health scheme they will be able to access a vaccination via GP, CP, Vaccination Centres* and Vaccination Outreach Services*.

One 't/ Devon




Communications and Engagement with Eligible People

Public Communications Targeted Communications

National media * NHSE text, emails and letters to eligible individuals
Local media * GP text, email to eligible individuals
National and Local Booking Systems * Schools text and emails to parents
Communications Toolkit shared with stakeholders * Clinicians to promote with inpatients and outpatients
Stakeholders to promote vaccination communications « Social media to target 2-3s, CEV and FLHW
through their channels * Posters to target CEV, FLHW, 65+ and BAME
Stakeholders include GP, CP, Schools, Trusts, LA, « Case studies to target CEV and FLHW
VCSE 5

What's Different in 2025/26 %

GP has been asked to focus on RSV for 75-79s, pneumococcal vaccinations for respiratory patients and Covid-19
vaccinations for immunosuppressed patients in the lead up to the winter campaign o

Education events have been held with Care Home Managers, at nurseries and in other community settings in the lead
up to the winter campaign

Commissioning of 2—-3-year-old flu vaccinations via CP (number of CP opt ins to be confirmed in September)

Trusts will increase their focus on CEV patients by asking clinicians to have vaccination conversations with their
patients

Trusts will ensure vaccinations are available at outpatient clinics, including at respiratory clinics, and before
discharge

From November, a request to GPs to have a clinical discussion with unvaccinated CEV patients which may be
supported by the outreach team

Increased vaccination education offers to staff in Trusts
Trusts will have a second push campaign aimed at FLHW at the start of November



This page is intentionally left blank



Readmissions at UHP

Health & Scrutiny Committee — 215t November 2025

Director of Integrated Care, Partnerships, Strategy and Chief Medical
Officer

NHS

University Hospitals
Plymouth
NHS Trust

| iﬁv )G abed



NHS

Readmissions University Hospitals

Plymouth
NHS Trust

A readmission is defined as when “a patient is readmitted to a
hospital as an emergency within 30 days of their previous hospital
stay.”

Readmissions are typically multifactorial, reflecting the interplay
between medical, functional, and system-level factors. Causes for
readmission tend to fall in one of the following:

Clinical and Patient-Related Reasons

Discharge and Care Transition Factors

Systemic and Organisational Factors

Psychosocial and Environmental Factors

Data and Coding-Related Issues

gG abed

A S



NHS|

University Hospitals

Readmissions: A Balance Plomanth

NHS Trust

4 N O N

The Risk of Early Discharge The Risk of Delayed Discharge

Discharging a patient too soon risks an

unplanned readmission if they are not fully

) . needed can lead to harms like infections, loss
recovered or supported, causing distress to 1 e .
. . of mobility (deconditioning), and delirium.
patients and families.

. AN /

6G abed

Keeping a patient in hospital longer than




Readmission Trend

NHS|

University Hospitals

Plymouth
NHS Trust

Readmissions by Month - Starting From April 2022

Complex Discharge Readmissions

300 - - - sea” » e g%
T 4 Tl e g 1V v N : N~ T 9V = i \
; soo - Pe . A E g
i v ; : o SS3553
= 7 2 'a. “‘.."-ia. =My = "-' %%%%%‘%&
2w ¢ Wity Y b ue ESS=ERS ]
B " B 5 :,:. & T e 3 o i 5 ) o & m Acute Discharge Week Ending (Readmissions Occur Within 28 Days)
W L o - o o L ¥ w w w o “ ¥ o 1-""ﬂh Discharges Readmitted Arg Lol ucL
Readmissions Rate[%) by Month - Starting From April 2022 Complex Discharge Readmission Rate
_—y | |1 5 o AN AAA A A
D S — no e te |55
i som e L L i e L stay o '% A A A 2
'E - o mm == et o '||'l'_"...'l"'l.l-'*'.‘w...-'.'FI . - % %% %&
’01., .y " . ry Py Al T T T A P T __-,," J ¥ ¥ r ¥ Py ' h Acute Discharge Week Ending (Readmissions Occur Within 28 Days) o QJ
ol - & A W W Ll % Readmitted Avg Lo ucL %
UHP has seen a sustained, statistically significant increase in the number and UHP Readmissions -
rate of readmissions, since February 2024. This has prompted local reviews 14000
. The UHP rate currently runs at 7.2%. 12000
. .. . 10000
. The national readmission rate (2023/2024 data - most recent) is
14.8% 8000
6000
. PLEASE NOTE: UHP uses a different method for collecting 4000
readmissions when compared to the national methodology. UHP
.. . . . 2000
collects data on all readmissions (including Cancer, Maternity and
0

Chemotherapy) day cases are also included in our data.

Our Complex discharge rate is currently 10.4%, within common cause
variation

mmmm Number of Discharges == Number of Readmissions

oo o g g g g g gl gl g gl al qrog g gogloo
£ > o c >4t o c A b ¢ >ac >0 c oo
o 1°3 [1%] ] 11°3 1] L]

= B e acmission Rate




NHS
Why is this Happening? University Hospitals

Plymouth
NHS Trust

X3 Key Issues have been identified to date:

1. Patient Complexity

. We are caring for more frail patients with complex, long-term conditions with increased
Length of Stay, who are more vulnerable after discharge.

T9 abed

2. Communications around Planning

. Gaps in communication with patients, families, and community partners can lead to
confusion or lack of support after leaving the hospital.

3. Data & Coding

. New systems and pathways (like Same Day Emergency Care) mean we are now coding
planned follow-ups as "readmissions,” making the rate look higher.



Finding 1: Data

University Hospitals

Plymouth
NHS Trust
Readmissions where SDEC pathways established
§ ¥y a9 ¥¥23338 2323338383333 3323 2333332832282
A T E 2 s § : T E & 5§ § : T E 2 5 § =
Row Labels - 22§35 F5822353:2325358 3583382335823 :2535853:8238¢:2325835153;
Brent Oncology Assessment Unit, Zone E, Level B 1 1 4 3 3 1 1 1 4 1 & 2 2 1 2 1 4 2 3 1 1 2 2 2 4 2 3 % 3 13 % 41 2 19 W 17
Chestnut Urology lrvestigation Unit, Zone D, Level 6 15 16 2% 31 10 15 27 20 17 13 11 8 16 20 19 22 15
Frailty SDEC - Level 10 - Monkswell 14 52 35 43 46 49 33 43 3B 2 M 3 2 4 045 30 43 3B 3B 3 45 27T T XM 42 3B Y
Medical Receiving Unit - Tamar Ward, Zone B, Level 6 3 213 181 169 191 155 135 172 173 2% 209 219 211 139 116
Owean SDEC, Zone D, LG T T8 TL B 69 95 B0 B5 TI101 9% T3
Oncology SDEC, Zone B, Level 3
SAU |Surgical Assessment Unit), Zone A, Level 7

13 25 83
179 144 120 122 143 137 142 151 126 130 126 163 145 163 177 157 176 184 173 175 163 156 205 176 178 225 216 232 204 182 216 205 202 174 204 234 199 219 240 246 221 239

abed

Since the introduction of Same Day Emergency Care (SDEC) pathways, a number of locations have reported an &
apparent increase in readmissions where these were not previously captured. This trend is believed to be largely

a result of how activity within these pathways is now recorded, rather than an indication of a decline in care
quality or patient outcomes.

A recent audit of 100 cases of all recorded readmissions, found that only 43 were "true" unplanned readmissions
related to the original hospital stay.

When auditing SDEC areas, only 28 were “true” unplanned readmissions related to the original hospital stay.



Finding 2: Patient Safety

* Despite the rise in the coded
readmission rate, patient safety is
improving.

* Reported harm incidents related
to discharge and readmissions
have significantly reduced.

* This suggests our clinical
discharge processes are becoming
safer and more effective.

 ED delay-related harm, a proxy for
flow (and therefore discharge risk
threshold) has also decreased
markedly since July 2024.

NHS

University Hospitals

Plymouth
NHS Trust

Apadminsicens - ncadets [A Haim| g 100 e ora- @arting O01 10

Bdminuions - Incidesty [Moderats srd Above) ger S50 rasdrsisioni- wlarting 04017 H

a
() [
. 11 F U .- ' L . . W —
" et ¥ B e
wa - »
- ;. ;_f.:.:'_':n' i'.:.\:;i:.'._'r
e - e " = = Tagw
J
wtwrmal Beoekerd by date reported to LN st Team 1taming misl Bpreierd by date Feported na LGP - Moo ate snd shove- wcidest Team n.ru_:m.'_rg)
. o
T
bem (P L
T
s Fra L
H KRR RARAMREREERE RZEAIATIA RS IO NN WD R HAERAMNEAMEEESERA&LZIIARILTILKEIH T
i2 i k5 i k I i N k3 I
— - S - — - e T
b il e e o el e amin e ey B il
(Estimate ual D patie Related Harm) o6/
2
~
®
m
L
L
L E T ATV . R AR = = = = = == =g = ==~
— e .
240
e e e &
w1
i
. 2
&
39§ Ly E £ FRazisgad
—_ Proc Specialcause - mprov




Finding 3: Patient Experience

* While clinical safety appears to be
improving, patient experience of
discharge presents an opportunity
for improvement.

* Qver half of patients surveyed
were not clear on their discharge
plan, what would happen next, or
what support they would get.

e The main concerns are inconsistent
communication and coordination.

* We have however seen a reduction
in complaints associated with
discharge processes and
readmissions

NHS

University Hospitals

Plymouth
NHS Trust
Pt Contacts (PALs and Complaints) ) - Discharge Processes [ Readmissions- starting 01 f01/20 Pt Cor [{ and Ci ! 00 ha
0101/
___________________________ =
- \
e e, M N ¥ AL A W 0 I WSttt ¥ S
T e v —A—=
i AV L .
*% E L] £ Posgs” W
=== --=--
EREEEE CEREEEEEEEEREEEREERERESEEEERES] ReRRRMossanENYNNNYRRRERRAITAaIenEs
ﬁafsﬁ? 5555 §E5iFlgzsAFiIgisagy $25383 | §53%3 ‘%‘%ﬁ%a’-’g ===== §253 773 §i53F3pEs 38R
—— Mean ;:‘ 0 cass b Spacislcauss - sene P g —_— n’ ] one rer
Has discharge been discussed with you? o
Yes No / Not Sure Q
45.37% 54.8% Q
@
Do you know what is needed to get you home, or what you could do to help yourself get better? g
Yes No / Not Sure
45.7% 54.3%

Do you know when you are likely to go home?

Yes No / Not Sure

33.28% 66.72%

Do you know what will

happen to you when you leave hospital?

Yes No / Not Sure

46.36% 53.64%

Has any further treatment or support been organised for you when you leave hospital?

Yes No / Not Sure

28.97% 58.4%

Have your family, frien

ds or carers been involved in exploring how they might be able to help when you leave hospital ]

Yes No / Not Sure

55.48% 44.52%




NHS
Our NEXt Steps University Hospitals

Plymouth
NHS Trust

Patient Voice Audit: Listen to patients and families to co-design clearer discharge
information and processes.

Data Quality: Implement a new validation process to separate "true" clinical
readmissions from planned or unrelated follow-ups.

G9 abed

Process Improvement: Continue current discharge Process Improvement
Programme to enhance discharge quality and consistency.

System Review: Work with our community partners to strengthen frailty pathways
and ensure support is in place for patients after they leave us.



This page is intentionally left blank



OFFICIAL

Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel — Action Log 2025/26

Key:
Complete
In Progress
Not Started
On Hold
Minute No. Resolution Target Date, Officer Responsible and Progress

/9 abed

6 Wal| epuaby

Action Log 2025/26



OFFICIAL

Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel — Action Log 2025/26

5 July 2025
96

Action: Officers to progress a Joint Select Committee
regarding Transitions from Children’s to Adults Social Care
services.

In Progress — A Select Committee Plan is being drafted and
will be circulated to members shortly.

Action Log 2025/26

89 abed



Page 69 Agenda Item 10

Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel
Work Programme 2025/26

PLYMOUTH

CITY COUNCIL

Please note that the work programme is a ‘live’ document and subject to
change at short notice. The information in this work programme is intended to
be of strategic relevance.

For general enquiries relating to the Council’s Scrutiny function, including this Committee’s
work programme, please contact Elliot Wearne-Gould (Democratic Advisor) on 01752

305155.
Responsible
Date of Agenda ltem Prioritisation Reason for Cabinet
Meeting 8 Score Consideration | Member/Lead
Officer
Performance,
Fm;zcz:s‘ioilw Helen Slater,
P 3 Standing Item | Stephen Beet, lan
AAES Lightley (NHS
Livewell SW ghtiey
Devon)
performance
End of Life Care
MoN .
. Referred by City | NHS Devon ICB.
L Motion on g Council Chris Morle
I5 July 2025 Notice - End of o4 oriey
Life Care.pdf
To scrutinise
upcoming
changes to the NHS England +
NSE N 4 structure and NHS Devon
re-structures .
operation of
NHS
management
14 October | Quarterly Finance
2025 and Performance 3 Standing Item Helen Slater +
Reports for Gary Walbridge
Moved to 2| H&ASC Y g
No;g;;ber reT;r::;\cl)lr?:/ and Chris Morley
Winter Planning prepar (NHS Devon) +
4 readiness for ,
. Rachel O’Connor
Winter
(UHP)
Pressures
Readmission .
Outcomes 3 rates, discharges Chris Morley
’ & (NHS Devon)
and outcomes



https://democracy.plymouth.gov.uk/documents/s152098/1%20Motion%20on%20Notice%20-%20End%20of%20Life%20Care.pdf
https://democracy.plymouth.gov.uk/documents/s152098/1%20Motion%20on%20Notice%20-%20End%20of%20Life%20Care.pdf
https://democracy.plymouth.gov.uk/documents/s152098/1%20Motion%20on%20Notice%20-%20End%20of%20Life%20Care.pdf

Page 70

25

Site Visit to

To view new

November | Dartmoor Building N/A TrLcja;%;nc:nt AmzzBdHaPl;lash
2025 (UTC) Derriford. C
entre
To review the
implications for
PCC CQC PCC following .
Outcome Report 4 the CQC Gary Walbridge
outcomes
02 repo'rt.
December To receive an
2025 Armed Forces GP update on
/ Surgery / Dental 3 Armed Forces’ NHS Devon
Update health care in
the city.
Kate Lattimore,
Unpaid Carers 4 Mark Collings &
Karlina Hall
03 February
2026
Items to be scheduled for 2025/26
2025/26 Wc?rkloads for 3 S:t:ii\e:sgzrsm,d Gar)" Walbridge
Social Workers + Livewell SW
Agency Staff
To provide an
UHP New update on
2025/26 Hospital’s 3 progress of.UHP Rachel O’Connor
Programme construction (UHP)
Update facilities and
services
To ensure
reater
2025/26 Local ;are 3 engazement and LCP /NHS
Partnership Plan . Devon
collaboration
with the LCP
Independent Review of
Prescribing performance of
2025/26 Pathfinder 3 the programme NHS Devon
Programme (NHS following prior
Devon) scrutiny
To continue
Urgent and .
2025/26 Emergency Care 4 scrutlnx of UHP NHS Devon
One Plan - capacity and

performance




Page 71

performance
against targets

To track further

Reforms and progress
2025/26 Restructures 3 following the NHS Devon
Update ICB merger /
clustering
Items to be scheduled for 2026/27
2026/27
2026/27
Items Identified for Select Committee Reviews
To be held in a
Transitions to Joint Select .
2025/26 Adult Social Care 4 Committee with Gag V'\glaﬁr:dge /
(from Children’s) Children’s avid matey

Scrutiny Panel




Page 72

Scrutiny Prioritisation Tool

Yes (51) Evidence
Public Interest Is it an issue of concern
to partners,
stakeholders and/or the
community?
Ability Could Scrutiny have an
influence?
Performance Is this an area of
underperformance?
Extent Does the topic affect
people living, working,
or studying in more
than one electoral ward
of Plymouth?
Replication Will this be the only
opportunity for public
scrutiny?
Is the topic due planned
to be the subject of an
Executive Decision?
Total: High/Medium/Low
Priority Score
High 5-6
Medium 3-4
Low 1-2




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Adult Social Care Finance Report – Month 6-  25/26
	Month 6 Scrutiny Update

	6 Adult Social Care Activity and Performance Report
	Scrutiny Panel Sept 2025 (C)

	7 Winter Planning
	Plymouth H&ASC- Winter Planning 2025-26

	8 Readmissions at UHP
	9 Action Log
	10 Work Programme

